
 
 

 

CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA 

Honorable Mayor Jason Lary, Sr. 
Council Member Jimmy Clanton, Jr. – District 1 Council Member Rob Turner- District 2 

Council Member Jazzmin Cobble – District 3 Council Member George Turner- District 4 

Council Member Diane Adoma – District 5 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
May 28, 2019 

7:00 p.m. 
3120 Stonecrest Blvd. Suite 190 

Stonecrest, Georgia 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Jason Lary 
 

II. ROLL CALL:  Megan Reid, City Clerk 
 

III. INVOCATION 
 

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

V. AWARDS AND HONORS 
 

VI. APPROVAL OF THE COUNCIL AGENDA 
 

VII. MINUTES: 
1. Approval of the May 13, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 

 
VIII. PRESENTATIONS:  

 
IX. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
X. APPOINTMENTS: 

 
 

XI. OLD BUSINESS: 
1. City Hall Buildout  

 



XII. NEW BUSINESS:
1. Standard Operating Procedure for Council Preparation for Contract 

Recommendations
2. Recommendation to contract with selected vendor for Landscaping, Maintenance 

& Janitorial Services for Parks & Recreation (entire Stonecrest Parks System) –
Sean De Palma

3. Fiscal Oversight Regarding Role of Council per Charter- Councilor Diane Adoma
4. SAP Notification Process to Council- Councilor Diane Adoma

XIII. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
1. SLUP 19-001 Personal Care Home (3317 Panola Road)
2. SLUP 19-002 Personal Care Home ( 5714 South Crest Lane)
3. First Reading- Updating Telecommunications Regulations TMOD – 19-0004
4. First Reading- Use Table Updates to Modify Personal and Childcare Homes 

TMOD – 19-0002(B)

XIV. EXECUTIVE SESSION:

WHEN AN EXECUTIVE SESSION IS REQUIRED, ONE WILL BE CALLED FOR THE FOLLOWING 
ISSUES:  1) PERSONNEL, 2) LITIGATION, 3) REAL ESTATE 

XV. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS

XVI. CITY ATTORNEY COMMENTS

XVII. MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS

XVIII. ADJOURNMENT



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

SUBJECT: Council meeting Minutes from May 13, 2019 

(  ) ORDINANCE (  ) POLICY (  ) STATUS REPORT 

(  ) DISCUSSION ONLY (  )  RESOLUTION ( x )  OTHER 

 Council Meeting:  5/28/2019 

SUBMITTED BY:   MEGAN REID

PURPOSE:  

HISTORY:    

FACTS AND ISSUES:  

OPTIONS: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  APPROVAL BY MAYOR AND COUNCIL 



1 
 

             

CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA 

Honorable Mayor Jason Lary, Sr. 
Council Member Jimmy Clanton, Jr. – District 1 Council Member Rob Turner- District 2 

Council Member Jazzmin Cobble – District 3 Council Member George Turner- District 4 

Council Member Diane Adoma – District 5 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
May 13, 2019 

 7:00 p.m. 
3120 Stonecrest Blvd. Suite 190 

Stonecrest, Georgia 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER:    Mayor Jason Lary 
 

II. ROLL CALL:   All members were present 
 

III. INVOCATION:  Invocation was led by Council Member Rob Turner. 
 

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 

V. Awards and Honors 
 

1. Stonecrest Champion Award 

Presentation by Mayor Lary. 

Stonecrest Champion Award presented to Mr. Daniel & Mrs. Cheri Hayes and their son 
Brandon Hayes for their courageous fight against liver failure. Mrs. Cheri Hayes 
became her son’s donor for a split liver transplant and saved his life and now he leads 
a normal life. 

 
VI. APPROVAL OF THE COUNCIL AGENDA: 

 
 
Motion 1- was made by Council Member Diane Adoma to approve the agenda with 
the changes as follows:  

• Add 2. Development Authority Appointment under X. Appointments 
• Remove 2. Panola Road Widening from XII. New Business  



2 
 

• Move 3. 2019 Parks and Recreation Fee Schedule to 2. under XII. New 
Business 

• Add 3. Development Authority Legal Budget, 4. Decision on June 24, 2019 
Council Meeting, 5. 2020 Census Committee, 6. Special Administrative 
Permit, and 7. Municode to XII. New Business and Council Member Rob 
Turner provided the second.   

The motion passed unanimously.   
 
 

VII. MINUTES: 

Motion 2- was made by Council Member Diane Adoma to approve the Council 
meeting Minutes from April 22, 2019 and Councilman George Turner provided the 
second.   

The motion passed unanimously 

 
VIII. PRESENTATIONS: 

a. Mayor Lary introduced Shakera Hall, Procurement Specialist to the Council and 
Citizens.  
 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Dele Lowman-Smith – Would like to see more transparency and felt that the 
Development Authority did not give enough notice for their last meeting on Thursday, 
May 9, 2019 and she would also like the citizens to be provided more information so 
that they can educate themselves on what is going on in the City.  
 
Geraldine Champion- Would like to see more transparency and has concerns about the 
staff.  
 

X. APPOINTMENTS: 
1. East Metro DeKalb Community Improvement District Committee 

a. Julian Jackson 

There was discussion and Julian Jackson would only be added to the committee as a non-voting 
member that would not count for a quorum but would only serve for his knowledge on the matters 
at hand. 

Motion 3- was made by Council Member Jimmy Clanton to appoint Julian Jackson to the East 
Metro DeKalb Community Improvement District Committee and Council member Diane Adoma 
provided the second.  

Motion passed unanimously. 



3 
 

2. Development Authority  
a. Matt Hampton 

The Mayor and Council clarified that this appointment would be a replacement of a member that 
was no longer serving on the board. Council Member Adoma requested the Mayor send out an 
updated list of the Committee Members currently serving. 

Motion 4- was made by Mayor Jason Lary to appoint Matt Hampton to the Development 
Authority and Council Member Rob Turner provided the second.  

Motion passed unanimously.    

 
XI. OLD BUSINESS: 

1. Second Reading – Ordinance to create Chapter 20 (Personnel) 

                  Ordinance read aloud by Attorney Christa Freeman. 

An explanation was provided by the City Attorneys that this ordinance is for future 
employees that the City hires. They also clarified that Exempt employees needs a 
better definition and that this ordinance could be amended at anytime 

Motion 7- was made by Council Member Diane Adoma to approve the Chapter 20 
Personnel Ordinance and include the revisions to the Exempt Employee section and a 
second was provided by Council Member George Turner. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

2. Second Reading – Ordinance to create Chapter 26 (Wreckers) 

Read aloud by Attorney Christa Freeman. 

There was much discussion regarding Customer Bill of Rights and if the City could 
keep a list of Wrecker services to use so that all wreckers are given an opportunity for 
the business. 

Motion 9- was made by Council Member Rob Turner to approve Chapter 26 
Wreckers and Council Member Diane Adoma provided the second. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

XII. NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Parks and Recreation Landscaping, Maintenance, and Janitorial Service RFP# 

2019-009 

Council member Jazzmin Cobble requested a copy of the contract. A copy was not 
available for Council. 



4 
 

Council Member Adoma asked why Council Member Jimmy Clanton was on the 
selection committee. 

Council Member Jazzmin Cobble asked for Joel Thibodeaux, Internal Auditor, for his 
opinion and he stated his opinion that the Contract should have been made available 
and that Council Member Jimmy Clanton should not have been on the selection 
committee. 

Council Member Jimmy Clanton recused himself from this agenda item and 
asked for his score to be removed from the recommendation letter. 

Motion 7 was made by mayor Lary to approve the contract with the recommended 
vendor, Optech Monette, LLC, in the amount of $318,270. 

No second was made. Motion failed. 

Motion 8 was made by Council Member Diane Adoma to defer this item to May 28, 
2019 in order to review the contract. Council member Rob Turner provided the 
second. 

Motion passed 4-1-1 with Mayor Lary opposing and Council Member Jimmy 
Clanton abstaining. 

 
2. 2019 Fee Schedule for Parks and Recreation 

Motion 8- was made by Council member Rob Turner to approve the 2019 Fee Schedule 
and Council Member Jimmy Clanton provided the second. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 
3. Development Authority Legal Budget 

Mayor Lary announced that the Board will be spending money out of their Legal 
Budget. 

4. Decision for June 24, 2019 Council Meeting 
 
Motion 9- was made by Council Member George Turner to cancel the June 24, 2019 
meeting and the Council will have a called meeting if necessary. Council Member 
Diane Adoma provided the second. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
5. 2020 Census Committee Discussion 

Council Member Adoma would like the Council to start thinking about putting together 
a Committee for the 2020 Census. 



5 
 

 

 

6. Special Administrative Permit Discussion 

Council Member Adoma would like the Telecommunication Ordiannce to provide 
more notification to the public. 

Council member George Turner would like for all new Commercial Building Permits 
be forwarded to the Mayor and Council in a timely manner. City Manager Juliam 
Jackson agreed to get this information to the Mayor and Council in a regularly 
scheduled time frame i.e. once a week or twice a week. 

7. Municode Agreement 
 
City Clerk megan Reid explained to the Council that this contract was written by the 
City Attorneys and that the contract was for $16,120 and would not exceed $17,120 
and that the 2019 Budget allowed up to $20,000 for this software. 
 
Motion 10-  was made by Council member Diane Adoma to approve the agreement in 
the amount of $16,120 not to exceed $17,120. Council Member George Turner 
provided the second. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 

XIII. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
 

 
XIV. EXECUTIVE SESSION: None required 

 

WHEN AND EXECUTIVE SESSION IS REQUIRED, ONE WILL BE CALLED FOR THE 
FOLLOWING ISSUES: 1) PERSONNEL, 2) LITIGATION, 3) REAL ESTATE 

 
XV. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS:   

No comments 
 

XVI. CITY ATTORNEY COMMENTS:    
No comments 
 

XVII. MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
Council Member Diane Adoma- invited the public to a Community Clean Up Event on 
May 18, 2019 from 8am-10am. There will be snacks (donated by Wal-Mart) provided 



6 
 

and t-shirts for all volunteers. She also mentioned that she was very proud that Brandon 
Hayes and his family were selected as the 1st Stonecrest Champions. 
 
Council Member George Turner- attended a Band Concert at the Martin Luther King 
Jr. High School. The High School Band has been selected to attend the Annual Macy’s 
Thanksgiving Day Parade and are doing a fundraiser at Macy’s at Stonecrest. Customers 
can round up their total and that will go toward the funds needed for the trip. 
 
Council Member Rob Turner- wished a belated Happy Mother’s Day to all the 
Mothers.   
 
Mayor Lary- thanked everyone who was able to attend the State of the City Address. 
He also stated tat the Wall Street Journal was able to attend the State of the City Address. 
Mayor Lary announced that the Caribbean Carnival will be having a meeting on May 15 
to all interested individuals to discuss the events that day including parade routes and 
parking and other issues that may arise. He would like to state for the record that the 
Development Authority provided ample notice for their meeting last Thursday. Mayor 
Lary would also like for the public to understand that the City of Stonecrest is a City and 
it isn’t going anywhere and for those who didn’t want it, he would like to meet with them 
to help fix the discontent.   

  
 

XVIII. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Motion 11-  was made by Council Member Jazzmin Cobble to adjourn the Council 
meeting at 9:15pm and a second was provided by Council Member Jimmy Clanton. 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
Read and adopted in the regular meeting of the City Council held on this _____ 
day of _______________, 2019. 
    __________________________ 
    Mayor Jason Lary 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Megan P. Reid, City Clerk 



COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

ITEM SUBJECT: City Hall Buildout 

(   ) ORDINANCE (  ) POLICY (  ) STATUS REPORT 

(  ) DISCUSSION ONLY ( ) RESOLUTION (X) OTHER

COUNCIL MEETING:    5/28/2019 

SUBMITTED BY: Julian Jackson 

PURPOSE:     

HISTORY:    

FACTS AND ISSUES:   

OPTIONS: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   



SCOPE OF WORK

RENOVATION OFFICES 

1-2

RENOVATION 

OFFICES 3-6

ALT. RENOVATION 

OFFICES 7-10

1 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS $8,000 $10,461 $11,995

2 INTERIOR DEMOLITION $618 $2,535 $1,024

3 CONCRETE $0 $0 $0

4 MASONRY $0 $0 $0

5 STEEL  $0 $0 $0

6 CASEWORK/ MILLWORK $0 $812 $0

7 THERMAL & MOISTURE $0 $0 $0

8 GLASS & STOREFRONT $0 $4,906 $0

9 FRAMES/ DOORS/ HARDWARE $1,308 $2,615 $2,615

10 FRAMING/ DRYWALL & ACT CEILINGS $1,863 $3,150 $4,025

11 FLOORING & BASE $325 $410 $810

12 PAINTING $850 $1,400 $1,500

13 ACCESSORIES AND SPECIALTIES $0 $0 $0

14 ELEVATOR $0 $0 $0

15 PLUMBING $0 $0 $0

16 FIRE PROTECTION $0 $1,000 $2,600

17 HVAC $650 $1,500 $2,000

18 FIRE ALARM $0 $0 $0

19 LOW VOLTAGE $0 $0 $0

20 ELECTRICAL $900 $3,300 $2,400

21 TAXES & INSURANCE $140 $162 $199

22 FEE (15%) $3,433 $3,557 $6,309

23 PERMIT $500 $500 $500

24 CONTINGENCY $0 $0 $0

25 P&P BOND $0 $0 $0

26 3RD PARTY TESTING $0 $0 $0

SUBTOTALS $18,587 $36,308 $35,977

PROJECT TOTAL

CLARIFICATIONS:

Includes building permit cost (if required)

Includes temporary protection and cleanup

Includes supervision

Includes working hours of 7 AM - 5 PM

Excludes design fees (arch, MEP, FP)

Excludes low voltage including fire alarm

Excludes contingency

MILESTONE CONSTRUCTION, LLC

345 W. Hancock Ave.

Suite 100

Athens, GA 30601

$90,872.00

City of Stonecrest Renovations

3120 Stonecrest Bldv. Suites 150-170 Lithonia, GA 30038

5.22.19 BUDGET SCHEDULE OF VALUES 











COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA ITEM 

SUBJECT: SOP for Council preparation for Contract Recommendations 

(   ) ORDINANCE (  ) POLICY (  ) STATUS REPORT 

(  ) DISCUSSION ONLY ( )  RESOLUTION (X) OTHER

COUNCIL MEETING:   5/28/2019 

SUBMITTED BY: Shakerah Hall 

PURPOSE:      

HISTORY:    

FACTS AND ISSUES:   

OPTIONS: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  



STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE SOP 
City of Stonecrest, Procurement Department Subject: Council Preparation for 

Contract Recommendations 
Replaces: N/A 

PURPOSE: 

This Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) serves as a guide for preparing Contract 
Recommendations to the City Council. This SOP applies to all procurements $25,000 or 
greater and details what documents are required for the various thresholds. 

DEADLINES: 
• Contracts Recommendations that requires Council approval are due to the City Council

seven (7) days prior to the Council meeting. The following documentation is required:
o Copy of the Solicitation
o Contract with the Recommended Vendor and City Attorney Signatures
o Award Amount (Quote Tab, Bid Tab, Source Selection Official Memo, Sole

Source Justification Form, or Renewal Memo)

• All Contract Recommendations are due to the Procurement Department no later
than the close of business on the Tuesday prior to submitting to the Council. Items
may be submitted to the Procurement Department as soon as they are ready.

• Contract Recommendations are due to the City Manager for approval no later than
9:00 a.m. the Thursday before items are due to the Council. Once approved the
Recommendation will be added to the upcoming Council Meeting agenda.

      DOCUMENTS 

NEW ITEMS: 

• Request for Quote (RFQ):
o $25,000.01 and above: Quote Tabulation with Procurement and City

Manager Signatures. Can move forward with the contract award process
once the recommendation has been approved by the Council.

• Invitation to Bid (ITB):
o $25,000.01 and above: Bid Tabulation with Procurement and City

Manager Signatures. Can move forward with the contract award process
once the recommendation has been approved by the Council.

• Request for Proposal (RFP):
o $25,000.01 and above: Source Selection Official Memo (which includes

Evolution Scorecard). Can move forward with the contract award process
once the recommendation has been approved by the Council.



• Sole Source and Governmental Contract
o $25,000.01 and above: Justification Form signed by the CFO. Can move

forward with the contract award process once the sole source and
governmental contract recommendation has been approved by the Council.

• Option Renewals
o $25,000.01 and above: Renewal Memo with Department Head and

Division Manager Signatures. Can move forward with the Option Year
once the Council has approved.

• FYI

1. PURCHASING LIMITS
a. Up to $5,000 – one oral quote required
b. $5,000.01 to $25,000.00 – three written quotes required
c. $25,000.01 and above – Sealed bids (lowest, responsive, responsible bid) or

sealed proposals (best value)
d. Exceptions

1. Emergency
2. Sole Sources
3. Other governmental contracts

2. APPROVAL LIMITS
a. Up to $5,000 – Department Head and Procurement
b. $5,000 to $25,000. – City Manager
c. $25,000.01 and above – City Council





COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA ITEM 

SUBJECT: Parks and Recreation Landscaping, Maintenance, and Janitorial Service RFP 
# 2019-009 

(   ) ORDINANCE (  ) POLICY (  ) STATUS REPORT 

(  ) DISCUSSION ONLY ( )  RESOLUTION (X) OTHER

COUNCIL MEETING:   5/28/2019 

SUBMITTED BY: Sean de Palma- Parks and Recreation Director 

PURPOSE:      

HISTORY:    

FACTS AND ISSUES:   

OPTIONS: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  


















































































































































































































































	Stonecrest Office Reno Buget Proposal_5.22.19
	Agenda 5-28-2019 Packet.pdf
	Agenda 5-28-2019 Packet.pdf
	Binder3.pdf
	Binder2.pdf
	Agenda Cover for Council Meetings
	City Council Minutes 05132019

	Agenda Cover Work Session 5-28-19 #4
	City Hall Build Out Lease Options

	Agenda Cover Work Session 5-28-19 #3
	WORK SESSION AGENDA ITEM

	SOP - Contract Recommendation - 05-21-2019
	PURPOSE:
	DEADLINES:
	NEW ITEMS:
	  Invitation to Bid (ITB):
	  Request for Proposal (RFP):
	 Sole Source and Governmental Contract
	 Option Renewals

	TMOD 19 0004 Telecommunications Regs and Staff Report_May282019
	TMOD 19 0002(B) Use Table and Staff Report_May282019
	Agenda Cover Work Session 5-28-19 #2
	WORK SESSION AGENDA ITEM

	Contract for RFP 2019-009
	Scorecard for RFP 2019-009
	SLUP 19 001 Personal Care Home and Staff Report_May282019
	SLUP 19 002 Personal Care Home and Staff Report_May282019

	City Council Agenda 05282019


